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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Manjushree Technopack Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Manjushree Technopack Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its
profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
("SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAL") together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note no. 1.E. to these financial statements, which describes in more detail
the accounting for the business combination arising from the Scheme of Amalgamation (“the
Scheme") between the Company and its erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary, MTL New Initiatives
Private Limited under section 233 of Companies Act, 2013, with Appointed date as September 1,
2023. The Scheme was approved by the Regional Director, Telangana vide their Order dated
November 15, 2023 and Corrigendum Order dated November 21, 2023. As explained in the said
note, the comparative financial information as at April 1, 2023 and for the year ended March 31,
2024 have been restated from the previously issued financial statements of the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Directors report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

o Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operatioris, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

¥
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economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive

Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

jii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 13.6 to the financial statements no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 13.6 to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

V. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until
the date of this report is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software(s) for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software(s). Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

Monisha Parikh
(Partner)

(Membership No. 47840)
UDIN : 24047840BKFIY]7865

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Manjushree
Technopack Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements based on, “the internal control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

2
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on, “the criteria for internal financial control with
reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 0080725)

P US W L V

Monisha Parikh
(Partner)

(Membership No. 47840)
UDIN : 24047840BKFIY]7865

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

.(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details
of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-
progress and right-of-use assets so to cover all the items once every three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program no such assets were due for physical verification during the year. Since no physical
verification of property, plant and equipment was due during the year the question of reporting on
material discrepancies noted on verification does not arise.

(c) Based on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title
deeds of all the immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) of all land and
buildings disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital
work-in-progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. Immovable
properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have been pledged as security for loans, are held
in the name of the Company based on the confirmations directly received by us from lenders.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

i.(a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories, when compared
with the books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year,
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the revised quarterly returns,
and stock statements for the respective quarters ended June 30, 2023, September 30, 2023,
December 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 which have been filed by the Company with the banks on
June 14, 2024 are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the
respective quarters.

%
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iii. The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee or security and granted loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year and details
of which are given below:

—

Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year: (Amount Rs. in Lakhs)
Loans or advances in the nature of loans to:
Erstwhile subsidiary 1,096.56
Employees 23.03

Balance of loans outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect
of the above cases:

Erstwhile subsidiary

Employees 1.90

b) The Company has not provided guarantees nor security during the year. The terms and conditions
of the investments made and above-mentioned loans or advances in the nature of loans are, in our
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) The Company has granted loans or provided advances in the nature of loans to employees, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments
of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulation.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loans granted by the Company which has fallen due during
the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to the same parties.

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not applicable.

iv.The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

v.The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi.The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1)

of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the
Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed
by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

Y
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(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Customs duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the
Company have generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities though there
has been a delay in respect of remittance of provident fund dues.

Vii.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Customs duty, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as
on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given below:

|;‘lame of the Statute |Nature of |Amount Amount [Period to which [Forum where
the Dues [Involved Unpaid the Amount Dispute is
(Rs. Lakhs) [(Rs. Relates Pending
Lakhs)
Income Tax Act, 1961 [Income tax 1,356.56| 1,356.56 2017-2018 and |Assessing Officer
dues 2020-2021

225.00 225.00 2013-2014 Income tax

Appellate Tribunal

6,504.02| 6,479.02 2013-2014 National Faceless
to 2016-2017 |Appeal Centre
and 2019-2020

viii.There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the

year.

ix.(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were,
applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.

x.(a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the year
and hence reporting under clause (x){(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Y
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(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and
covering the period upto November 30, 2023 and the internal audit reports for the period December
01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 which were issued after the balance sheet date.

In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicabie to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause
(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities and other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

¥
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xx.The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
and there are no unspent CSR amounts for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special accountin compliance with the provision of sub-section
(6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

”\{»)\V‘Q«/L—*

Monisha Parikh
(Partner)

(Membership No. 47840)
UDIN : 24047840BKFIY17865

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024
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MANJUSHREE TECHNOPACK LIMITED

Registered Office at MBH Tech Park 2nd Floor Survey No 46P and 47 P Begur Hobli Electronic City Phase-Il Bangalore KA 560100
Website: www.manjushreeindia.com, Email: info@manjushreelndia.com CIN No.: U67120KA1987PLC032636

BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

As on As on
Particulars Not  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I. Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 78,070.91 76,440.35
(b) Right of use assets 2B 20,591.43 17,493.10
(c) Capital work-in-progress 2E 4,878.65 1,995.51
(d) Goodwill 2 18,482.81 18,482.81
(e) Other Intangible assets 2 15,677.35 21,103.91
(f) Intangible assets under development 2F 668.45 -
{g) Financial assets
() Investments 5 1,968.46 1,600.41
(i) Loans 3 2,755.98 2,205.37
(h) Other non-current assets 4 10,622.75 5,995.98
Total non-current assets 1,53,716.79 1,45,317.44
Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 35,357.80 35,231.87
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 30,107.24 30,972.55
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 2,439.56 7,836.71
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above 8 82.46 100.93
(iv) Other financial assets 10 248.62 345.18
(c) Other current assets 1 6,961.46 7,878.73
(d) Asset classified as held for sale 11A 503.95 2,332.13
Total current assets 75,701.09 84,698.10
Total Assets 2,29.417,88 2,30,015.54
Il. Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12A 1,371.86 1,371.86
(b) Dther equity 128 99.442.45 93.728.28
Total equity 1,00,814.31 95,100.14
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 38,440.75 43,391.24
(li) Lease liabliities 2t 11,939.87 10,887.65
(i) Other financial liabilities 14 1,787.14 2,427.15
(b) Provisions 15 175.43 711.69
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 5411.17 3.059.50
Total non-current liabilities 57,754.36 60,477.23
Current liablilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 36,924.89 37,125.41
(ii) Lease liabifities 2C 3,069.11 2,512.64
(iii) Trade payables 17
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,020.89 1,619.39
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 25,597.50 25,426.15
(iv) Other financial liabllities 18 1,683.27 5,817.03
{b) Other current liabilities 20 1,523.72 1,866.09
(c) Provisions 19 29.83 71.46
Total current Habilities 70,849.21 74,438.17
Total Equity and Liabilitles 2,29,417.88 2,30,015.54
Company profile and background 1A
Material accounting policies 1.F
Notes on Financial Statements and other explanalory information 2 to 50

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0080728

Monisha Parikh
Partner

Membership No: 47840
Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 21, 2024

MM

Thimmaiah NP
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 01184636
Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024

Rajesh Kumar Ram
Chlef Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024

Ashok Sudan
Chairman

DIN: 02374967
Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024
Rasmi Ranjan Naik
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

Year Ended Year Ended
fiaifculars Nl March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I Revenue from operations 21 2,11,700.27 2,09,633.87
ll. Other income 22 1,329.75 1.220.58
111, Total income (1 +11) 2,13,030.02 2,10,854.45
IV. Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 23 1,25,534.41 1,36,133.39
(b) Purchase of stock in trade 392.77 888.85
{c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, slock-In-trade
and work-in-progress 24 (2,248.77) (3,897.74)
(d) Employee benefits expense 25 13,850.26 13,654.85
(e) Other manufacturing expenses 26 22,413.87 22,149.54
(f) Finance costs 27 8,145.78 7,853.75
(g) Depreciation and amoriisation expenses 2D 15,487.96 13,282.41
(h) Other expenses 28 14.424,74 11,354.13
Total expenses (IV) 1,99,001.02 2,01,419.18
V. Profit before exceptional Items and tax @-lv) 14,028.00 9,435.27
VI. Exceptional llems 42 2,056.06 (324.99)
VIi. Profit before tax (V+VI) 16,085.06 9,110.28
VIIl. Tax expense: 43
(i) Current tax (640.00) (2,139.30)
(ii) Current tax relating to earlier years 952.34 127.06
(iii) Deferred tax (2,318.52) (1.174.88)
Net tax expense (VIil} (2,006.18) (3,187.12)
IX. Profit for the yoar (VII-Vill) 14,078.88 5,923.16
X. Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of net defined bensfit liability 33.67 85.65
Income tax relating to net defined benefit liability (8.47) (22.42)
Net gain on investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 98.05 -
Income tax relating to net gain on equily Instruments through Other Comprehensive Incomie (24.68) o
X1. Total Comprehensive Income 14,177.45 5.986.39
Earnings (basic) per share in rupees (face value of Rs 10/- each) . 41 103.92 43.72
Earnings (diluted) per share In rupees {face value of Rs 10/- each) 41 93.89 43.72
Company profile and background 1A
Material accounting policies 1.F
Notes on Financial Statements and other explanatory information : 2to 50
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our repor of even daie For and on behalf of the Board
For Deloltte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regisiration Number ; 0080728

Monisha Parikh Thimmaiah NP Ashok Sudan
Partner Managing Director & CEQ Chairman
Membership No: 47840 DIN: 01184636 DIN: 02374967
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024 Date: June 21, 2024 Date: June 21, 2024
Rajesh Kumar Ram Rasmi Ranjan Naik
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 21, 2024 Date: June 21, 2024
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2024

Particulars

(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

Kar Ended

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortisation expense .
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (including exceptional item) {net)
Provision for doubtful trade receivables (net)
Provision for doubtful advances
Trade advances written off
Interest income
Rental Income
Share-based payments
Liabilities no longer required written back
Fair value gain on deferred purchase consideration on acquisition
Reduction in carrying value of on non current assets held for sale
Unreglised loss / (Gain) foreign currency exchange loss
Finance costs

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for;
inventories
Trade receivables
Current and non current assets, and other financial assets
Trade payables
Other liabilities
Provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash generated from operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work in progress and Right of Use Assets)
Proceeds from sale of Properly, plant and equipment
Acquisition of new businesses
Upfrant commitment fee towards an acquisition
Purchase of nen-current investiment
Fixed deposits with banks matured
Rental received
Margin Money deposits (made)/received
Interast received

Net cash used in from investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Repayment of long tenm borrowings
Proceeds from/(repayment) of short term borrowings (net)
Repayment of Ipase liabilities
Dividend paid
Interest paid on Lease Liabilities
Interest and financing charges paid

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the year

Notes:
1. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprises of:
Cash on hand
Balance with banks:
In current accounts
In cash credit account
Deposits with original maturity of less than three monihs

Total

Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
16,085.06 9,110.28
15,487.96 13,282.41
(1,536.37) (96.61)
146.00 143.05
164.90 -

- 0.88
(376.10) (457.91)
(129.78) (330.00)
356.27 598.82
(253.65) -

(1,028.91)

124.81 -
4.00 (24.35)
914578 _ 7,853.75
38,189.97 30,080.32
(125.93) 2,645.83
445.58 (3.272.37)
63.28 3,805.47
572.84 2,797.01
(761.04) (1,133.12)
(544.23) 14.50
37,840.47 34,937.64
{2,589.48) (2,681.18)
35,240.99 32,256.46
(18,913.78) (14,580.50)
6,699.09 1,640.45
(1,502.63) (19,190.07)

(1,500.00) -
(270.00) (395.00)

- 397.83

129.79 330.00

36.87 (18.00)
388.71 260.58
(14.931.95) (31,554.71)
4,499.83 15,610.51
(4,176.33) (2,091.11)
(2,843.58) 1,284.76
(2,741.23) (1,617.48)
(8,819.55) (1,557.99)
(1,350.19) (786.72)
(10,275.14) (8,674.08)
(25,706.19) 2,167.89
{5,397.15) 2,869.64
783671  4,967.07
2,439.56 7,836.71
455 6.31
500.33 154.57
726.81 3
1,207.87 7,675.83
243956 183671

Y
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2024 (Continued)

2. Reconciliation of lease liabilities for the yoar ended March 31, 2024

[Particulars | Ason Aprll 01, 2023 | Impact of ind AS 116 | Repayments As on March 31, 2024 |
|Lease liabilities | 13,400.29 5700.12 | {4,001.43) 15,008.98 |
Raconciliation of lease liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars As on Aprit 01, 2022 | Impact of Ind AS 116 Repayments | _As on March 31, 2023
Lease liabilities 4,029.92 11,774.57 (2,404.20) | 13.400.29

3. The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows®.
4. Previous year's figures have been rearran: rouped 1o conform 1o the classification of the current year, wharever considered necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0080728

‘T-Q_:»JLH‘M/ Tﬁ .

- —

M/x&vgw

Monlsha Parikh Thimmalah NP Ashok Sudan

Partner Managing Director & CEO

Membership No: 47840
Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024

DIN: 01184636
Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024

k..

Rajesh Kumar Ram
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024

Chairman

DIN: 02374967
Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 21, 2024

_—
Rasii Ranjan Naik
Company Secretary
Place: Bangsluru
Date: June 21, 2024
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MANJUSHREE TECHNOPACK LIMITED

Registered Office : MBH Tech Park, 2nd Floor, Survey No 46P and 47P, Begur Hobli, Electronic City,
Phase-lI, Bangalore ~ 560100, Website: www.manjushreeindia.com Email: info@manjushreeindia.com
CIN No.: U67120KA1987PLC032636

NOTE NO. 1

NOTES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2024

A. COMPANY PROFILE AND BACKGROUND

Manjushree Technopack Limited (the Company) is a public limited Company incorporated in the year 1987 under the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in providing packaging solutions, manufacturing and selling PET, Plastic
Preforms and Containers. These products are significantly sold in domestic markets and also exported. The Company has its
production facilities spread across states of Karnataka, Andhra Pradesh, Punjab, Uttar Pradesh, Himachal Pradesh, Uttarakhand,
Haryana, Assam and Maharashtra in India. The registered office of the Company is situated in Bengaluru, Karnataka.

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on a going concern and accrual basis in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of
Schedule 1ll to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule [Il), as applicable to the financial statements. All the
assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 as well as guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:
i Financial instruments;

ii. Lease deposits;

iii. Lease obligations and Right of Use assets;

iv. Goodwill and Intangible assets arising out of business combinations;

V. Deferred consideration payable to Hitesh Plastics Pvt. Ltd ,Pearl Polymers Limited, Classy Kontainers and Varahi;

and

vi. ESOP liability.
The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs
(INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA had not notified
any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

C. CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or
disclosure of an item or information in the financial statements is made relying on these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company
and are based on historical experience, various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that
the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.
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The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

i)

ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)

vii)

Amortization of Intangible Assets — Refer note (IV)
Depreciation of Property Plant & Equipment-Refer note (V)
Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Refer note (XIII)
Estimation of current tax expenses - Refer note (XIV)
Recognition of Deferred tax asset - Refer note (XIV)
Impairment of Non- Financial assets — Refer note XV)
Provisions and Contingent liabilities - Refer note (XV1)

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle of
twelve months and other criteria set out in Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013.

CURRENT VERSUS NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

> Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normat operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

> Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least  twelve months
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

> It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

AMALGAMATION OF WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH THE COMPANY

The Company during the year had filed a Scheme of Amalgamation (“the Scheme”) to merge its wholly Owned Subsidiary,
MTL New Initiatives Private Limited (“MNIPL”) with the Company, under section 233 of Companies Act, 2013, with
Appointed date as 01 September 2023. The Scheme was approved by the Regional Director, Telangana vide their Order
dated 15 November 2023 and Corrigendum Order dated November 21. 2023 which was received by the Company on
November 20, 2023 and November 28, 2023 respectively. The Company completed the filing procedures with Registrar
of Companies, Karnataka (“ROC") on December 18, 2023.

In terms of the Scheme:

1. All the assets, liabilities and other equity of the wholly owned Subsidiary Company have been transferred to and vested
with the Company as on the Appointed date.
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2. The value of Investment held by the company in the wholly owned company and the corresponding share capital of the
wholly owned company stands cancelled.

The amalgamation has been accounted under the ‘common control’ method in accordance with the Appendix C of the
Indian Accounting Standard(“Ind AS") 103 “ Business Combinations”, and the Company has given effect to the
amalgamation by restating the financial statements of the earliest period presented i.e., March 31, 2023. Accordingly, the
financial statements reflect the effect of amalgamation for all the periods presented.

MNIPL operates in the same business segment as the Company which is manufacture and sale of Preforms, Containers
and recycling in the "Rigid Plastic Packaging" business segment.

The value of net identifiable assets acquired, as at March 31, 2023 (being the earliest period presented) and consequent
adjustment to Retained Earnings is given below :

I. ASSET TAKEN OVER Rs. lakhs
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 6,018.67
(b) Right to use assets 1,202,87
(c) Capital work-in-progress 42.10
(d) Financial assets- Loans & advances 209.34
(e) Other non-current assets 89.75
(f) Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets 7,562.73
Current assets
(a) Inventories 967.70
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 4,358.77
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 15.46
(iii) Other bank balances 36.30
(c) Other current assets 1,990.80
Total current assets 7,369.303
Total Assets (A) 14,931.76

Il. LIABILITIES TAKEN OVER
Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities 980.13
(ii) Other financial liabilities 15,543.34
(b) Provisions 41.10
Total non-current liabilities 16,564.57

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 427.85
(if) Trade payables
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Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 205.13
Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 1,693.20
(iii) Other financial liabilities ) 58.08
(b) Provisions 3.19
{c) Other current liabilities 36.55
Total current liabilities 2,424.00
Total Liabilities (B) 18,988.57
:;et deficit adjusted in Retained earnings as at April 1, 2023 (A - 4,056.81

F. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

)
a)
b)
c)
d)
In)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)
Land, both freehold and leasehold is carried at historical cost.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
ltems such as stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment
are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life.

Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance, other than those resulting in enduring benefit and increases the economic
life of the asset, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale.

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.
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)

Vi)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets except goodwill are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible
aceets developed or acquired with finite useful life are amortized on straight line basis. Goodwill is not amortize2 but
tested for impairment on annual basis.

intangible assets consist of, Customer Relationships, Brands and Designs, Non-competing fees and Goodwill which were
acquired from Varahi, National Plastics, Pearl Polymers Limited, Classy Kontainers and Hitesh Plastic Private Limited.

INTERNALLY GENERATED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Research costs are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred

Product development costs incurred on development of new products are recognised as intangible assets, when feasibility
has been established, the Company has committed technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and it is probable that asset will generate future economic benefits.

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset is the sum of directly attributable expenditure incurred from the
date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria to the completion of its development.

Product development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the useful life prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013 under straight line method on a proportionate basis depending upon the period of use. Those assets
acquired/discarded during the year are depreciated on pro-rata basis. Depreciation is provided from the date of
capitalization on a Straight Line Method (SLM) at the rate prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 or
the rates determined based on management's estimate of useful lives of assets based on technical evaluation of the useful
lives of such assets which reflects the nature, size and operations of the Company.

Intangible assets (Patents, Trademark, Brand and Customer Relationship Contracts) are amortized over their estimated
useful life of five to ten years, depending upon the useful life of the asset.

Computer software is amortized as per straight line method prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

VALUATION OF INVENTORIES

a) Raw materials, semi-finished goods, finished goods, packing materials, stores, spares, components, consumables
and stock-in-trade are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held
for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished goods in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on
an item-by-item basis.

b) In determining the cost of raw materials, packing materials, stock-in-trade, stores, spares, components and
consumables, first-in, first-out (FIFO) method is used. Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase, duties,
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition. Cost of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts.

c¢) Cost of finished goods and semi-finished goods includes the cost of raw materials, packing materials, an appropriate
share of fixed and variable production overheads, taxes and duties as applicable and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of
normal capacity of production facilities.
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Vi)
1)
Vil
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
1))
IX)
a)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition - Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance Sheet date - Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are restated at the closing exchange rates. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing

on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these transactions are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of
promised goods to the buyer either at the time of dispatch or delivery or when the risk of loss transfers. Revenue is
measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration), taking into account contractually defined
terms of payment. Goods and Services tax (GST) are not received by the Company on its own account. GST is tax
collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded
from revenue.

Reveriue from job work is recognized on completion of service under the contract.

Revenue from Design and Development services is recognized when the services are completed as per the terms of
the agreement and when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation exists.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Export benefits in the nature of duty drawback are accounted as income in the year of exports based on
eligibility/expected eligibility duly considering the entitlements as per the policy, management assessment, etc. and
when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same duly considering the realisability.

Rental income, and Income from storage and goods handling, are recognized based on contractual terms and
conditions.

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive is established.

Income from sale of scrap is recognized upon dispatch.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through Profit or Loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through Profit or Loss are initially recognized at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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b)

€)

d)

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or fair value through Profit or Loss on the basis of:

i} The entity's business model for managing the financial assets; and
i) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

i) Measured at amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost, if it is held under "the hold to collect business model" i.e. held
with an objective of holding the assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

Amortized cost is calculated using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The losses arising from impairment of these assets are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
On derecognition of these assets, gain or loss, if any, is recognized to Statement of Profit and Loss.

i) Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI, if it is held under "the hold to collect and sell business model" i.e. held
with an objective to collect contractual cash flows and selling such financial asset, and the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

It is subsequently measured at fair value with fair value movements recognized in the OCI, except for interest
income which is recognized using EIR method.

The losses arising from impairment of these assets are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
On derecognition of these assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the OC is reclassified from
the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investment in financial asset other than equity instrument, not measured at either amortized cost or FVTOCI is
measured at FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value and changes in fair value, including interest
income and dividend income, if any, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials

assets in FVTPL category.

As per Ind AS 109, for financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognizes 12 months expected
credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset
has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime
expected credit losses, if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. The
Company's trade receivables do not contain significant financing component, and loss allowance on trade receivables
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall. Where loans or receivables
have been written off, the Company continues to engage in recovery of the receivables due. Where recoveries are
made, these are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual right to the cash flows from the financial asset
expires, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.
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a)

b)

d)

e)

X)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company's financial liabilities includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts
and derivative instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured using EIR method. Financial liabilities
carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans & Borrowings
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using

EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are de-recognized.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments ;

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a
current enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each Balance Sheet date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained

above.
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XI)

LEASE

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or-cortains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right of- use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

¢ Land and Building - 5 to 99 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (xv) Impairment
of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the
option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment and office premises (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be fow value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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X1)

Xin)

b)

c)

The Company as a Lessor

Company Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lez=a. All other leases are classified as operating leases. :

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the subleases partly.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease.

For Operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund, employee
provident fund scheme, efc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made
as and when services are rendered by the employees. Company's provident fund contribution is made to a
government administered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits
are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond the
monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plans
The Company also provides for retirement/post-retirement benefits in the form of gratuity and compensated

absences to the employees.

For defined benefit plans, the amount recognized as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss
is the cost of accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the costs of individual events
such as past/future service benefit changes and settlements (such events are recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss).

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The defined benefit plan surplus or deficit on the Balance Sheet comprises the total for each plan of the fair value of
plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit liabilities. The classification of the Company’s net obligation
into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Other employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the obligation as at the
Balance Sheet date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

Undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by employees are recognized during the period when the employee renders the inrelated services.

TAXES ON INCOME

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination or to an item which is recognized directly in equity or in
Other Comprehensive Income.
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a) Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable incomefloss for the year using applicable tax rates
at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years, Interest income/expenses and
penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in current tax expense.

b) Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax liability is recognized based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and used tax losses only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

¢) Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to seftle the asset and the liability on a net basis.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost to sell and value in
use. To calculate value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market rates and the risk specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent
cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Fair value less cost to sell is
the best estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the cost of disposal.

Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses are reversed in the
Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognized.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably
not require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable
certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made. A contingent asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and financial institutions, other short-

term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Xvil CASH FLOW STATEMENT

- <.As per Ind AS 107 Statement of Cash Flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax ic-adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.

XVIll)  EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

Basic EPS is arrived at based on net profit after tax available to equity shareholders to the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive equity
shares unless impact is anti-dilutive.

XIX) BUSINESS COMBINATION
Business combinations Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.

The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred to the Company, liabilities incurred by the Company to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interest issued by the Company in exchange for control of the acquiree.

Acquisition related costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that deferred tax assets or
liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance
with Ind AS 12 and Ind AS 19 respectively;

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non- controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess, after reassessment, is recognized in capital reserve through other
comprehensive income or directly depending on whether there exists clear evidence of the underlying reason for
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase.

When the consideration transferred by the Company in a business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against Gooduwill/capital
reserve.

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date. The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions
as at the acquisition date.

Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
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Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognized and measured as set out above. Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment
at least annually. For the purpose of impairmext-testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating
units (or group’s of cash-generating units) expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An
impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. On disposal of a cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

XX) EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or
incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and
amount of such material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

XX1) SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Selected employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of equity settled instruments for rendering services
over a defined vesting. Equity instruments granted are measured by reference to the fair value of the instrument at the
date of grant. The expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss with a corresponding increase to the share
options outstanding account, a component of equity. The equity instruments generally vest in a graded manner over the
vesting period. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed over the vesting period of the respective tranches
of such grants. The compensation expense is determined based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest.
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MANJUSHREE TECHNOPACK LIMITED

Registered Office at MBH Tech Park 2nd Floor Survey No 46P and 47 P Begur Hobli Electronic City Phase-li Bangalore KA 560100

Website: www.manjushreeindia.com, Email: info@manjushreeindia.com CIN No.: U67120KA1987PLC032636

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

Note "2C": Lease Liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

Lease liabilities As on .
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current lease liabilities 11,939.87 10,887.65
Current lease liabilities 3,069.11 2,512.64
Movement in lease liabilities

Opening Lease Liability 13,400.29 4,029.92
Addition during the year 4,903.47 11,076.14
Cancellation of lease contracts (553.54) (88.29)
Finance Cost accrued during the year 1,350.19 786.72
Payment of Lease Liabilities (4,091.43) (2,404.20)
Closing Lease Liability 15,008.98 13,400.29
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
(Cash Outflow undiscounted)

a. Not later than one year 4,278.63 3,087.84
b. Later than one year and not later than five years 11,059.45 9,998.98
c. Later than five years 4,396.99 2,807.36
Note "2D": Summary of depreciation & Amortisation
As on As on
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Property, Plant & Equipments 7,782.13 7,073.66
Intangible Assets 5,444.42 4,812.34
Right of use Assets 2,261.41 1,396.41
Total 15,487.96 13,282.41




MANJUSHREE TECHNOPACK LIMITED

Registered Office at MBH Tech Park 2nd Floor Survey No 46P and 47 P Begur Hobli Electronic City Phase-ll Bangalore KA 560100
Website: www.manjushreeindia.com, Email: info@manjushreeindia.com CIN No.: U67120KA1987PLC032636

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

Note "2E": Capital Work-in-progress ("CWIP")

Ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

particulars Amount of CWIP for period of Total
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Projects in progress 4,657.00 172.66 - 48.99 4,878.65
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
In respect of projects where the completion is overdue as at March 31, 2024 the schedule for completion is given below:
Particulars To be completed in Total
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Research, Development and training facility 22.28 - - - 22.28
Plant & Equipment 30.25 - - - 30.25
Total 52.53 - - - 52.53
Ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2023 (Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)
Particulars Amount of CWIP for period of Total
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Projects in progress 1,201.52 66.99 28.00 699.00 1,995.51
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
In respect of projects where the completion is overdue as at March 31, 2023 the schedule for completion is given below:
Particulars To be completed in Total
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Research, Development and training facility 429.11 - - - 429.11
Factory building 138.00 - - - 138.00
Plant & Equipment 191.00 - - - 191.00
Others 34.00 - - - 34.00
Total 792.11 - - - 792.11
Note "2F": Intangible assets under development (New Product Development Cos
Ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2024
Particulars Amount of CWIP for period of Total
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years
Projects in progress* 668.45 - - - 668.45
Project temporarily suspended - - - - -

* As at March 31, 2024, none of projects are overdue. All the projects are expected to completed during the year ending March 31, 2025.




MANJUSHREE TECHNOPACK LIMITED
Registered Office at MBH Tech Park 2nd Floor Survey No 46P and 47 P Begur Hobli Electronic City Phase-ll Bangalore KA 560100
Website: www.manjushreeindia.com, Email: info@manjushreeindia.com CIN No.: U67120KA1987PLC032636

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024
(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

Particulars

As on
March 31, 2024

As on
March 31, 2023

Financial Assets
Note "3" : Loans
Non-Current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits 1,046.83 1,037.94
Rental deposits 1,625.95 1,167.43
Receivables others (refer note 36) 83.20 -
Total 2,755.98 2,205.37
Note "4" : Other Non-Current Assets
Non-Current
Prepaid Expenses 163.43 97.39
Capital advances (refer note 48) 3,355.99 1,707.07
Advance tax (Net of Provision for tax) ** 7,103.33 4,191.52
Total 10,622.75 5,995.98
** Includes Income Tax Demand paid under protest of Rs.25 lakhs (Previous year - Rs. 25 Lakhs)
Note 5" : Non-current Investments -
Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Four EF Renewables Private Limited
82,135 Equity shares of Rs.100 each 82.14 82.14
Less:- Fair value through other comprehensive income (17.67) -
64.47 82.14
1,64,271 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.100 each 164.27 164.27
Less:- Fair value through other comprehensive income (35.33) -
128.94 164.27
Clean Max Scorpius Power LLP
Capital Contribution (Refer note 5(i) below) 1,624.00 1,354.00
Add:- Fair value through other comprehensive income 151.05
1,775.05 1,354.00
Total 1,968.46 1,600.41
5(i) Particulars relating to total capital, partners and profit sharing ratio
Name of Partners Capital Contribution Profit_sharing ratio
Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited 4,622.15 74.00%
Manjushree Technopack Limited 1,624.00 26.00%
Kuldeep Jain * - 0.00%
Total 6,246.15 100.00%
* Capital Contribution is only Rs. 10 which is less than rounding off norms adopted by the Company.
Current Assets
Note "6" : Inventories
(At cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
Raw materials 10,029.93 12,107.13
Packing materials 991.68 888.90
Work-in-progress 733.64 689.68
Finished goods 19,741.84 17,251.01
Stock-in-trade 503.89 789.91
Stores, Spares and Consumables 3,356.82 3,505.24
Total 35,357.80 35,231.87
During the year the Company has recognized Rs. 688.97 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 840.31 Lakhs) as an expense towards writedown of inventories.
Note “7" : Cash and Cash Equivalen
Cash on hand 4.55 6.31
Balances with banks
-In Current accounts 500.33 154.57
-In Cash Credit accounts 726.81 -
-Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 1,207.87 7,675.83
Total 2,439.56 7,836.71
Note “B" : Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Margin Money deposits 49.62 86.50
Unclaimed dividend accounts 32.84 14.43
82.46 100.93

Total




MANJUSHREE TECHNOPACK LIMITED

Registered Office at MBH Tech Park 2nd Floor Survey No 46P and 47 P Begur Hobli Electronic City Phase-Il Bangalore KA 560100
Website: www.manjushreeindia.com, Email: info@manjushreeindia.com CIN No.: U67120KA1987PLC032636

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars

As on
March 31, 2023

As on
March 31, 2024

Financial Assets
Note "9" : Trade Receivables

Current
Unsecured, considered good 30,107.24 30,972.55
Unsecured, considered doubtful 283.94 489.86
30,391.18 31,462.41
Less : Expected credit loss provision (283.94) (489.86)
Total 30,107.24 30,972.55
The average credit period on sales of goods is ranging from 1 to 120 days
Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance:
Balance at the beginning of the year 489.86 535.32
Less: Bad debts written off (285.35) (188.51)
Less: Provision no longer required written back (66.57) -
Add: Expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at
lifetime expected credit losses 146.00 143.05
Balance at the end of the year - 283.94 489.86
Ageing Schedule of trade receivables as at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments:
Particulars Not Due & months- - Total
< 6 months 1 ;:ars- _ 1-2years 2-3 years > 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 24,312.36 5,224.15 452.24 118.48 - - 30,107.23
Considered Good
(iij Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - - -
which have significant increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed TradeReceivables— credit impaired - - 102.37 66.52 44.96 70.09 283.94
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — - = = - o - =
Considered Good
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - - = & - - - -
which have significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Ageing Schedule of trade receivables as at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments:
Particulars Not Due 6 months-1 Total
< 6 months year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — 24,835.07 5,843.20 234.30 59.98 - - 30,972.55
Considered Good
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — - - - - - - -
which have significant increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed TradeReceivables- credit impaired - - 55.16 244.43 109.21 81.06 489.86
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — = S = - a - .
Considered Good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — = = = = = - =
which have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired -
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024
{Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

Particulars aeon en
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note "10" : Other Financial Assets
Current
Interest accrued on bank deposits but not received 4.46 17.07
Receivable others 234.41 328.11
Derivatives cn fcreign exchange forward contracts 9.75 -
Total 248.62 345.18
Note "11" : Other Current Ass
Balances with government authorities
Customs duty deposit 68.97 43.87
Goods and Services Tax receivable 2,078.09 1,789.10
Other deposit 5.79 31.90
Total A 2,152.85 1,864.87
Other loans and advances
Prepaid expenses 820.69 269.82
Advance to employees 21.04 74.06
Loan to director - 72.00
Advance to suppliers 3,901.71 5,563.57
Earnest money deposit 65.17 34.41
Total B 4,808.61 6,013.86
Total (A+B) 6,961.46 7,878.73
Note "11A" ; Asset held for sale
Asset held for sale (refer note below) 503.95 2,332.13
503.95 2,332.13

Note: The Company has identified certain properties comprising land and buildings for sale. These properties are carried at net realisable value based on
valuation carried out by an independent registered valuer. ’
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024 {Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise}
Particul As on As on
aricuars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note "12A" : Share Capital
No. of Shares . No. of Shares .
(No's) Amount in Rs (No's) Amount in Rs
Authorised Capital
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each ( Previous year Rs 10/- each ) 2,51,00,000 2,510.00 2,50,00,000 2,500.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each ( Previous year Rs 10/- each )
Fully Called up and Paid up in Cash 1,35,47,700 1,354.77 1,35,47,700 1,354.77
Add: Forfeited shares (amount originally paid up) - 17.09 - 17.09
(239,500 equity shares have been forfeited on 30.09.1997 for non-payment of allotment money.)
Total 1,371.86 1,371.86
(i) Reconciliation of no. of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the current period:
Particulars NosDt slhares Amount in Rs No. of s.hares Amount in Rs
(No's) (No's)

Equity Shares of face value Rs 10/- each
as on beginning of the year 1,35,47,700 1,354.77 1,35,47,700 1,354.77

Add: Forfeited shares (amount originally paid up) = & = =

Less: number of shares bought back during the year -
as on end of the year 1,35,47,700 1,354.77 1,35,47,700 1,354.77

(ii) Share holders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company:

Class of share / Name of the shareholder 2L5L ?hares % of shares Nosgot ?hares % of shares
(No's) (No's)

Equity Shares of face value Rs 10/- each

Al Lendrco Midco Limited 1,31,73,990 97.24% 1,31,73,990 97.24%

(iii) The Company has only one class of shares. Each Equity Share holder is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Note "12B" : Other equi
General Reserve:

Balance as on the beginning of the year 1,544.93 1,300.00
Add/(Less): Transferred from current period surplus - 244.93
Balance as on the end of the year . 1,544.93 1,544.93

The general reserve is used from time 1o time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. There is no policy of regular transfer. as the general reserve is
created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss.

Securities Premium:

Balance as on the beginning of the year 2,735.32 2,735.32
Add/(Less) : Premium on Fresh Issue of Shares - -
Balance as on the end of the year 2,735.32 2,735.32

Securities Premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Equity component of compulsorily convertible debentures:

Balance as on the beginning of the year 31,718.20 31,718.20
Add/(Less) : Issue and conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures -Equity Component - -
Balance as on the end of the year 31,718.20 31,718.20
Retained Earnings
Balance as on the beginning of the year 56,293.32 51,864.92
Add: Profit for the year 14,078.88 5,923.16
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year 98.57 63.23
Less: Dividend paid (8,819.55) (1,557.99)
Balance as on the end of the year 61,651.22 56,293.32
Employee Share-based Payments Outstanding:
Balance as on the beginning of the year 1,436.51 1,082.62
Add : Recognition of share-based payments (refer Note 40) 356.27 598.82
Less: Transfer of forfeited ESOP cost to reserves (refer note 40) (244.93)

Balance as on the end of the year 1,792.78 1,436.51
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

As on As on
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ci Non Current Current Non Current
Financial Liabilities
Note "13" ; Borrowings
Secured
Term loans
(i) Rupee Term Loan (refer Note 13.1 below) 6,613.86 18,047.24 3,988.86 20,348.73
(i) Compulsorily convertible debentures {refer Note 13.2 below) 2,744.77 20,393.51 2,726.70 22,971.21
(iii) Term Loan FCRNB - - - 71.30
Working capital loans (refer Note 27.566.26 5 30,409.85 R
< 13.3 below)
Total 36,924.89 38,440.75 37,125.41 43,391.24
Note 13.1: Rupee Term Loan As on As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rate of interest in RRmESF Rl
Particulars % instalments Current Non Current Current Non Current
? remaining
HDFC Term Loan 9.49% 10 562.63 844,20 562.60 1,406.51
ICICI Term Loan 9.88% 15 1,460.35 4,015.96 1,460.35 5,476.31
ICIC! Term Loan 9.78% 15 90.88 250.07 90.91 340.91
HDFC Term Loan 8.18% 14 3,510.06 8,774.66 1,755.03 12,285.21
HDFC Term Loan 8.18% 14 239.94 599.85 119.97 839.79
Axis Term Loan 8.50% 23 750.00 3,562.50 - -
Total 6,613.86 18,047.24 3.988.86 20,348.73

*Hypothecation of Company's present and future movable fixed assets comprising Plant and Machineries , Equipment, etc. along with equitable mortgage of immovable properties
located at Bengalury, Baddi, Pantnagar, and Amritsar.

Note 13.2: Compulsory Convertible Debentures

The Company has issued following Cormpulsory Convertible Debenlures ("CCD") at par with face value of Rs.100 each. The "CCD" shall have a tenure of 8 years and is convertible
into equily shares at the earlier of: (i) the exercise of its right 10 convert the CCDs into Equity Shares by the Investor, by issuing a nolice to the Board in this regard; or (il) the expiry
of tenor . The simple interest rate of 8% is payable the value of CCD on haif yearly basis, The Company has classifed the “CCD" as compound financial instrument and has compuled
debt and equity element in accordance with IndAs 108, “Financials Instruments®, The Company has complied with the requirements of Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act,
2013, and the funds raised have been applied by the Company during the year far the purposes for which the funds were raised other than lemporary deployment pending

application.

Allotment date No of CCDs A t (Rs.) Conversion price (Rs.) No. of equity share
18-Dec-19 3,521,614 3,521.61 1,637.96 215,000
12-Apr-21 2,500,133 2,500,13 1,637.96 152,637
7-Jan-22 26,500,000 26,500.00 1,620.23 1,635,570
18-Jan-22 26,200,000 26,200.00 1,620.23 1,617,054
58,721,747 58,721.74 3,620,261

Subsequent to year end, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 10, 2024 approved the issue of 54,190,800 Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs) having face
value of Rs. 100 each, at par fully paid up, aggregating to an amount not exceeding Rs. 54,190.80 Lakhs on a rights basis and the approval of the Shareholders was obtained

through Postal ballot which closed on June 15, 2024.

Note 13.3: Quarterly Returns Submitted To Banks

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, fram banks on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The revised
quarterly returns, and stock statements for the respective quarters ended June 30, 2023, September 30, 2023, December 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 have been filed with the

banks on June 14, 2024,

Note 13.4" : Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or finangial institution or government or any government authority.

Note 13.5" : Application Of Term Loans
Term loans availed by the Company were applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

Note 13.6" : Additional Regulatory Disclosure

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermedianes) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall: (3) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons o entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on benail of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantes, securily or the like to or on behalf of the Ullimale Beneficiaries. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(jes), including
foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whethar recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entitias identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uttimate

Beneficiaries.

Nate 13.7: Working Capital loans :
Working capital loans are secured against property, plant and equipment, and current assets of the Company, present and future,
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)
. As on As on
Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Note "17" : Trade Payable
Current

Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (refer note below )

2,020.89 1,619.39
Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 25,597.50 25,426.15
Total 27,618.39 27,045.54
Note :
Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Details relating to dues to Micro and Small enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 is on the basis of such parties having been identified by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors'". The
Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act. The following table provides the
details:
The principal amount due thereor remaining unpaid to any supplier As on the end of each accounting year. 2,020.89 1,619.39
Interest due there on remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year. 25.71 18.64
The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the year. . 0.01

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act. N 18.65

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise. h

2571 18.65

Ageing Schedule of trade payables as on March 31, 2024

Outstanding for the following period from due date of
Particulars Unbilled Not Due payments Total
<1year | 1-2years| 2-3 years > 3 years
(i) MSME - 1,437.89 574.00 5.00 2.00 2.00 2,020.89
(ii) Others - 21,292.35 4,098.06 93.33 88.96 24.80 25,597.50
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
Ageing Schedule of trade payables as on March 31, 2023
Outstanding for the following period from due date of T
Particulars Unbilled Not Due payments Total
<fyear [1-2years| 2-3years >3 years
(i) MSME - 1,468.41 123.97 23.85 0.03 3.13 1,619.39
(ii) Others - 14,999.14 9,679.90 592.34 94.60 60.17 25,426.15
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - | - -
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

Note "14" : Other Financials Liabilities
Non-Current

Rental deposit

Security deposit

Gratuity (refer note 39)

Total

Note "15" : Non-Current Provisions
Compensated absences
Total

Note "16" : Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net
Deferred tax assets

Employee Benefits

Provision for expenses

Provision for doubtful debts

Total A

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation/Amortization on property, plant & equipment and goodwill
Right of use assets

Revaluation of FVTOC! investments to fair value

Interest on Compulsory Convertible Debentures

Total B

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (B-A)

1,611.97
175.17

1,787.14

175.43
175.43

177.25
3.78
72.45
253.48

3,474.46
1,178.99
24.68
986.52
5,664.65

5,411.17

100.00
1,369.92
957.23
2,427.15

711.69
711.69

665.13
192.20
122.30
979.63

2,957.42
1,081.71

4,039.13
3,059.50
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024
(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

Particulars As on e
. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Note "18" : Other Financial Liabilities
Current
Creditors for capital goods 1,151.70 1,622.54
Advance against sale of property - 999.14
Gratuity (Refer note 39) 246.04 " 269.07
Unclaimed dividends 32.84 14.43
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 169.74 18.37
Derivatives on foreign exchange forward contracts - 5.27
Deferred purchase consideration:

-Packing Business of Varahi Limited 35.96 35.96

-Plastic packaging products business of Classy Kontainers 46.99 158.20

-Plastic packaging products business of Hitesh Plastics Private limited

- 2,694.05

(refer note 38)
Total 1,683.27 5,817.03
Note “19" : Provisions
Current
Compensated absences 29.83 71.46
Total 29.83 71.46
Note "20" : Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Liabilities 404.49 418.62
Advance from customers 1,119.23 1,447 .47

Total 1,523.72 1,866.09
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NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note "21" : Revenue from operations
Products
Domestic { Refer notes below) 1,86,734.51 1,88,479.10
Exports 6,675.84 6,659.60
Other operating income
Job-work income 15,268.39 12,053.07
Freight and Logistics income 1,565.77 1,391.22
Storage and goods handling income 590.08 241.91
Design and Development Services 672.47 599.83
Trading of Export incentive scrips - 60.97
Miscellaneous receipts 193.21 148.17
Total 2,11,700.27 2,09,633.87

Notes 21 (i) The Company derives its revenue from sale of Preforms, Containers, Pumps, Dispensers, Caps and closures and recycling in the “Rigid Plastic
Packaging” business segment, which constitutes a single operating business segment. (Refer Note 45). The entire portion of Company's Revenue
comprises of ‘Performance obligations salisfied at a point in time'.

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contract assets (trade receivables) 30,107.24 30,972.55
Contract liabilities (advances from customers) 1,119.23 1,447.47
Note "22" : Other Income
A. Interest
On margin money deposits 274.02 381.24
Others 102.08 76.67
Total (A) 376.10 457.91
B. Other Non-Operating Income
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 279.52 96.61
Rental income 129.78 330.00
Foreign currency exchange gain (Net) 243.12 290.85
Discount and rebates 47.58 45.21
Liabilities no longer required written back 253.65 -
Total (B) 953.65 762.67
Total (A+B) 1,329.75 1,220.58
Note "23" : Cost of materials consumed
Opening Stock - Raw Materials 12,107.13 17,280.82
Opening Stock - Packing Materials 888.90 978.26
Add: Purchase of Raw Materials (Net of Returns) 1,15,642.17 1,23,016.90
Add: Purchase of Packing Materials (Net of Returns) 7,917.82 7,853.44
1,36,556.02 1,49,129.42
Less: Closing Stock - Raw Materials (10,029.93) (12,107.13)
Less: Closing Stock - Packing Materials (991.68) (888.90)
Cost of Materials Consumed 1,25,534.41 1,36,133.39
Note "24" : Change in inventories of finished goods. stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Opening stock of finished goods 17,251.01 13,725.47
Opening stock-in-trade 789.91 519.90
Opening stock of work-in-progress 689.68 587.49
Less : Closing stock of finished goods (19,741.84) (17,251.01)
Less : Closing stock-in-trade (503.89) (789.91)
Less : Closing stock of work-in-progress (733.64) (689.68)
Net (Increase) / Decrease (2,248.77) (3,897.74)
Note "25" : Employee benefits ex
Salaries, wages and allowances 11,762.11 10,851.46
Directors' remuneration (Refer note 36) 638.56 792.26
Contribution to Provident and other funds 463.32 450.54
Gratuity (Refer note 39) 228.57 236.06
Share-based payments (Refer note 40) 356.27 598.82
Staff welfare expenses 401.43 725.71

Total 13,850.26 13,654.85
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NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note "26" : Other manufacturing expenses
Power and Fuel charges 11,571.14 10,249.14
Repairs & Maintenance
Building & Civil Works 250.03 231.98
Plant & Machinery 367.37 513.17
Others 276.39 221.33
Others
Job work charges 790.98 950.51
Labour charges 6,317.17 6,799.39
Water charges 31.08 26.31
Consumable & Stores 2,110.34 2,427.38
Freight and Transportation 665.99 716.81
Factory rent 23.29 2.95
Hire charges-Production 10.09 10.57
Total 22,413.87 22,149.54
A) Interest cost
Rupee Loans - Term Loans 2,049.56 983.32
Rupee Loans - Cash Credit 2,186.25 2,411.54
Bill discounting 757.50 280.62
Deferred purchase consideration - 308.47
Compulsory Convertible Debentures 2,725.33 2,995.17
Realised loss on Forward Contracts 8.73 18.36
Lease liabilities 1,350.19 786.72
B) Other borrowing cost
Bank commission and charges 68.22 69.55
Total 9,145.78 7,853.75
Note "28" : Other expenses
Rent 535.35 425.26
Rates, taxes and other fees 293.60 322.45
Insurance premium 595.33 526.51
Vehicles running and maintenance 125.02 104.85
Telephone charges 69.70 70.78
Printing and stationery 68.50 80.13
Postage and telegrams 104.85 86.74
Professional charges 3,301.80 1,796.07
Electricity charges 51.63 41.87
Membership and subscription 24.65 27.23
Computer maintenance 409.25 241.50
Hire charges of equipments 61.23 56.24
Directors Fees (refer note 36) 115.00 115.00
Auditors Remuneration
- as auditor (including Rs. 7 Lakhs relating to earlier year (Previous year - Rs. Nil)) 59.00 52.50
- for other services 19.50 3.69
- out of pocket expenses (Including Rs. 2.62 Lakhs pertaining to earlier year
A . 4.46 -
(Previous year - Rs. Nil))
Security service charges 352.60 316.84
Travelling and Conveyance expenses 642.50 687.14
Provision for doubtful trade receivables (net) 146.00 143.05
Provision for doubtful advances 164.90 -
Loans & advances written off - 0.88
Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 46) 233.00 220.55
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion 313.95 180.79
Freight outwards 6,558.18 5,700.50
Miscellaneous expenses 174.74 153.56
Total 14,424.74 11,354.13
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Note "29": Financial instruments - fair value measurement (Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

(a) Accounting classifications and fair values
The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are of Level I category except for forward contracts derivative instruments which are classified
as Level Il.The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of the financial assets and liabilities.

As on As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
) Carrying amount/ Fair Carrying amount/
Baiticulars Value FairgValue
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 30,107.24 30,972.55
Cash and cash equivalents 2,439.56 7,836.71
Other bank balance 82.46 100.93
Investments 1,968.46 1,600.41
Security deposits 1,046.83 1,037.94
Rental deposits 1,625.95 1,167.43
Other financial assets 238.87 345,18
Financial assets measured at fair value
Forward contracls Receivable (net of payable) 9.75 -
Total 37,519.12 43,061.15
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 75,365.65 80,516.65
Lease deposits - 100.00
Security deposits 1,611.97 1,369.92
Trade payables 27,618.39 27,045.54
Other financial liabilities 1,858.43 6,769.00
Lease liabilities 15,008.98 13,400.29
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Forward contracts payable (net of receivable) - 5.27
Total 121,463.42 129,206.67

Note: 29 (i) The Management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, irade receivables, trade payables, and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Note: 29 (ii) The Forward contracts have been taken by the Company for hedging ils foreign currency exposures for both receivable and payable in foreign currencies, and
its fair value has been determined based on the forward rate provided by the bank for outstanding forward contracts.

Note "30": Financial instruments - risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk (refer note (b) below)

- liquidity risk (refer note (c) below)

- market risk (refer note (d) below)

(a) Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directars has overall responsibitity for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the GCompany, to sel appropriate risk limits and controls and 1o monitor
risks and adherence to limils. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in markel conditions and the Company's activities. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations

The Company’s audit committee oversees how fmanagement monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company’s receivables from customers, loans to related parties and cash and cash equivalents.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

(i) Trade and other receivables:
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate.

Particulars As on As on

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from top 5 customers 56,190.82 60,456.00
Revenue from top customer 18,572.21 15,231.46
Receivable from top 5 customers 8,640.62 5,440.13
Receivable from top customer 930.54 654.65

Five customers accounted for more than 27% of the revenue for the year ended March 31, 2024, however top customer accounted for more than 3% of the receivables as
at March 31, 2024. Five customers accounted for more than 29% of the revenue for the year ended March 31, 2023, however top customer accounted for more than 2%
of the receivables as at March 31, 2023.

Expected credit loss (ECL) assessment for customers

The Company provides for loss allowance on trade receivables based on life-time expected credit loss. For the assessment of life-time expected credit loss, assets are
classified into three categories as Standard and doubtful based on the counter-party's capacity to meet the obligations and provision is determined accordingly. Standard
assets are those where the risk of default is negligible. Doubtful assets are those where the credit risk is significantly increased / are impaired.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to repay the Company, as per the agreed terms. Where loans
or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in recovery of the receivables due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in Statement

of Profit and Loss.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents of Rs 2,439.56 lakhs at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs 7836.71 lakhs). The cash and cash equivalents are mainly

held with nationalised banks which have a very low risk of default.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring losses or causing damage to the Company’s reputation.

Note "31": Financial instruments - risk management

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted contractual cash flow, and
include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

As on March 31, 2024 Carrying amount Total 0-12 months 1-5 years More than 5 years
Borrowings 75,365.65 75,365.65 36,924.89 38,440.75 -
lease liabilities 15,008.98 19,735.07 4,278.63 11,059.45 4,396.99
Security deposits 1,611.97 1,611.97 - - 1,611.97
Trade payables 27,618.39 27,618.39 27,618.39 - -
Other payables 1,858.43 1,858.43 1,858.43 - -
Total 1,21,463.42 1,26,189.51 70,680.34 49,500.20 6,008.96
As on March 31, 2023 Carrying amount Total 0-12 months 1-5 years More than 5 years
Borrowings 80,516.65 80,516.65 33,486.88 47,029.77 -
lease liabilities 13,400.29 15,894.18 3,087.84 9,998.98 2,807.36
Lease deposits 100.00 100.00 - - 100.00
Security Deposit 1,369.92 1,369.92 - - 1,369.92
Trade payables 27,045.54 27,045.54 27,045.54 - -
Other payables 6,774.27 6,774.27 6,774.27 - -
Total 1,29,206.67 1,31,700.56 70,394.53 57,028.75 4,277.28

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected. dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and Future plans of the Board of Directors and Management, no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the approval of the financial statements
- indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Note "32": Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, which will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings

of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return.

i} Currency risk
Majority of the transactions entered into the company are denominated in INR. However, for certain transactions which are entered in foreign currency, the Company

enters into forward exchange contract to mitigate the risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations.

Outstanding forward contracts

i. Outstanding short term forward exchange contracts entered inta by the Company on account of payables: -

As on No. of Contracts Currency Amount
March 31, 2024 12 usD 888.46
March 31, 2023 20 usD 3,507.86

ii. Qutstanding Short Term Forward Exchange Contracts entered into by the Company on account of receivables:

As on No. of Contracts Currengy Amount
March 31, 2024 13 usb 1,039.34
March 31, 2023 8 UsSDb 1,126.67

Foreign Currency Exposure
The company exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR as follows:

As on As on
Particulars Currency March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Receivables USD 224.30 763.21
GBP 7.20 20.24
Trade Payables UsD 160.17 289.75
EURO 13.43 3.36
AUD 1.53 -

i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's

exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the year are as follows :-

As on As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Variable rate borrowings 24,661.10 24,337.59
Total Borrowings 24,661.10 24,337.59

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Impact on Profit or Loss
1% increase or decrease

March 31, 2024
Variable rate borrowings 246.61

March 31, 2023
Variable rate borrowings 243.38
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) As on As on
Particulars Note reference March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Pumps and Dispenser Business 8,000.00 8,000.00
B2B plastic business 327.49 327.49
Plastic packaging products business 6,803.23 6,803.23
HPPL business 38 3,352.09 3,352.09
Total 18,482.81 18,482.81

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually. Impairment is recognized,
years and then on perpetuity on the basis of certain assumptions which i
assumptions are taken on the basis of past trends and management estimates and j

The key assumplions are as follows:

if present value of future casl
ncludes revenue growth, earnings before interest and taxes, capital outflow an
udgement. Future cash flows are discounted using "Weighted Average Cost of Capital".

Assumptions As on Ason
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Terminal growth rate (%) 5%, 5%|
Discount rate (%) 14% 12%

‘As at March 31, 2024 the estimated recoverable amount of the Cash Generating Unit exceede:

Note "34": Contingent Liabilities not provided for in books of accounts:

Future cash flows in respect of () above are determinable only on receipt of judgments / decisions pending with various forums / authorities. The Compan

claims and expects no liability on these counts.

d it's carrying amount and accordingly, no impairment was recognized.

h flows is less than the carrying value of goodwill. Future cash fiows are forecast for 3
d working capital requirement. The

y is confident of defending the above

Particulars Ason As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total liability Margin/ deposils Net liability Total liability Margin/ deposits Net liability
Disputed liability towards income lax under
appeal relating to:
i) allowance for depreciation on Goodwill and 372.00 25.00 347.00 1,846.52 25.00 1,821.52
other Intangible assets
ll[l nthers
Note "35": Capital commitments
" Ason As on
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account {nel 13,875.26 6,869.76

of advances)
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Note "36": Related party disclosures
A) Al Lenarco Midco Limited, Holding company(Uitimately controlled and owned by funds managed by Advent International L.P.)

B) Enterprises in which Directors have significant influence
None

C) Key managerial person (KMP)
Napanda Poovaiah Thimmaiah, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. 30.05.2022)

D) Other Related Parties

Jayesh Merchant, independent Director
Ashok Sudan, Independent Director
Manu Anand, Independent Director

. . Year Ended Year Ended

Nature of transactions and related parties March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Director Fees

Jayesh Merchant 40.00 40.00

Ashok Sudan 25.00 25.00

Manu Anand 50.00 50.00
Remuneration / Commission paid to KMP

Saniay D Kapote - 9.32

Napanda Poovaiah Thimmaiah 638.56 797.37
Advances given

KMP - 7200

Holding Company - 83.20
Interest on CCD paid to Holding Company 5,284.96 4,692.42
Divided paid to Holding Company. 8,576.13 1,514.99
Repayment of advance

KMP 72.00 -

i . Year Ended Year Ended
Balances with related parties March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Receivable from related parties

Holding Company | 83.20 | 83.20

KMP | - 72.00

Note (i) - Remuneration to KMP does not include provision for gratuity and compensated absences, which are determined based on actuarial valuation for the Company as a whole.

Note "37": Transactions with struck off companies

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
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Note "38"; Acquisition of plastic packaging products busi of Hitesh Plastics Private Limited

During the prévious year, the Company acquired on a slump sale basis, business of manufacluring, trading and/or sale of plastic packaging products of "Hitesh Piastics Private Limited” pursuant (o
Business Transfer Agreement signed on 09 Seplember 2022, for a consideration of Rs. 17,853.61 lakhs (including cantingent consideration of ¥ 2,621 lakhs). Pursuant to achieving all the closing
conditions, the transaction was closed on 21 September 2022 and Rs. 15,232.59 lakhs was made and balance amount of Rs 2694.05 lakhs (incluting interest of Rs 73 lakhs) disclosed as Other
Financial Liabilities under note 18. The Company accounted for the transaction basis the purchase price allocation in line with the requirements of Ind AS 103," Business Combinations".

The details of assets and liabilities taken over, and resultant goodwill is given below:
Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise
Particulars Fair value recognised on
acquisition

Assets

Property, plant and eguipment 1,319.00
Intangible  assets  (Customer  Refationships, 6,109.71
Brands and Non-compete Fees)

Current Assets :

- Slock 2,789.77
- Trade and other receivables 2.857.68
- Other current assets 2,191.41
Total assets 15,267.57
Liabilities

Current Liabilities:

- Trade Pavables 766.05
Total liabilities 766.05
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 14,501.52
Purchase consideration 17,853.61
Goodwill 3,352.09

During the current year, the performance linked milestone for contingent consideration was not achieved and consequently the Company was required to pay Rs. 1,665.14 Lakhs. Accordingly, the
balance contingent consideration of Rs 1,028.91 Lakhs has been reversed and disclosed under "Exceptional items " in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Note "39": EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Gratuity: In accordance with the applicable laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (“The Gratuity Plan") covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides for
a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement (subject to completion of five years of continuous employment), death, incapacitation or termination of employment that are based on last
drawn salary and tenure of employment. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date and the Company makes annual contribution to the
gratuity fund administered by Life Insurance Companies under their respective Group Gratuity Schemes.

The disclosure in respect of the defined gratuity plan are given below:

Table showing changes in present value of obligations (DBO):

Period As on As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Preseng value of the obligation at the beginning of 127875 1,063.98
the period

Interest cost 89.69 7517
Current service cost 174.75 168.27
Benefits paid (if any) (136.68) (123.38)
Acquisitions (Transfer in) - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss (65.54) 94.71
Present value of the obligation at the end of the| 1.340.97 127875
|neriod
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Break-down of actuarial {gain)/loss

Period As on As on
March 31, 2024 WMarch 31, 2023
Actuarial (Gain)/Losses due to Demographic
Assumption changes in DBO (53.65) (0.26)
Actuarial  (Gain)Losses due to Financial
Assumption changes in DBO 17.24 11.85
Actuarial (Gain)/Losses due to Experience on
DBO (29.13) 83.12
Return on Plan Asst (more)/Less than Expected
based on Discount rate 31.87 (5.28)
Total amount recognised in  other
comprehensive Income (33.67) 89.43
The amount to be recognised in the Balance sheet:
Period As on As. on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Pre.sent value of the obligation at the end of the 1,340.97 1278.75
period
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 919.76 52.44
Net I|ab|||ty/(asset? recognized in Balance Sheet 42101 1,226.31
and related analysis
Funded status - surplus/ {deficit) (421.21) (1,226.31)
Expense recognized in the Statement of profit and loss:
Period As on As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest cost 89.69 75.17
Current service cost 174.75 168.27
Expected return on plan asset (35.87) (7.38)
Expenses to be recognized in P&L 228.57 236.06
Table showing changes in the fair value of planned assets:
Period As on As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Falr. value of plan assets at the beginning of the 52.44 157.09
period
Expected return on plan assets 35.87 7.38
Contributions 1,000.00 -
Benefits paid (136.68) (117.31)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (31.87) 5.28
Fair value of plan asset at the end of the period 919.76 52.44
The assumptions employed for the calculations are tabulated:
Discount rate 7.17% {per annum) 7.41% (per annum)
Salary Growth Rate 8.00 % per annum 8.00 % per annum
Mortality JIALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
Withdrawal rate (Per Annum) 23% (per annum) 6% (per annum)

Current Liability (Expected payout in next year as per schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013):

Period As on As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current liability (short term) 246.04 269.07
Non current liability (long term) 175.17 957.23
Total liahility 421.21 1,226.30
Sensitivity Analysis disclosure for financial year ended March 31, 2024:
Particulars % increase in DBO Liability Increase in DBO
Discount Rate +100 Basis Points (4.85%) 1,275.86 (65.10)
Discount Rate -100 Basis Points 5.36% 1,412.85 71.89
Salary Growth +100 Basis Points 4.66% 1,403.43 62.47
Salary Growth -100 Basis Points (4.31%) 1,283.16 (57.81)
Attrition Rate +100 Basis Points (0.62%) 1,332.71 {8.26)
Attrition Rate-100 Basis Points 0.66% 1.349.86 8.89
Mortality Rate 10% Up (0.02%) 1,340.76 (0.20)
Effect of Ceiling 1.16% 1,293.82 15.52
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Note "40": Share-based Payments

Ti.c Company has approved the ‘Manjushree Technopack Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2019' (“ESOP 2019” /“Plan") on 6 June 2614 and has granted stock option to certain
employees and Directors with grant date as 8 July 2019. The company has granted further ESOP under above plan to employees during the FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24.

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options for each of the following groups of options

As on As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Number of Welghte'd ) Number of Welghtgd )
share options average exercise price SFaraIERiion: average exercise price
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the period 2,72,024 1,637.60 3,567,799 1,637.60
Granted during the period 2,400 1,637.60 42,432 1,637.60
Lapsed during the year (23,411} - (1,28,207) -
Qutstanding at the end of the period 251,013 1,637.60 2,72,024 1,637.60
Compensalion expense arising on account of Share based payments
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employee Share-based payment (refer note 25) 356.27 508.82
The following tables list the inputs to the model used for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, respectively:

As on As on

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fair values at the measurement date Rs. 785.41 - Rs.416.37 Rs. 785.41 - Rs.535.06
Dividend yield (%) 0% 0%
Expected volatility (%) 35.42% to 40% 35.42% to 40%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 6.03% -7.41% 6.03% -7.41%

1- 6 Years 1- 6 Years

Expected life of share options

Model used Black-Scholes

Black-Scholes
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Note "41": Eamning per share

Earnings Per Share (EPS) - EPS is calculated by dividing lhe profit/ (loss) attributable to the equily shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
earnings and weighted average numbers of equity shares used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per equity share are as follows:

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Year Ended
March 31, 2023

Basic earnings per share
Profil after lax available for equily shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares #
Basic earning per share
Face value of equily share (3)

Diluted eamings per share
Profit after tax available for equity shareholders

Total Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
for calculating Diluted EPS (nos.) #*
Diluled earning per share

14,078.88
135.48
103.92

10.00

16,118.30

171.68

93.89

5923.16
135.48
43.72
10.00
5,923.16

135.48

4372

# On June 15, 2024, the shareholders through Postal Ballot approved the sub-division of one equily
share of face value of Rs. 10 each to five equity shares of the face value of Rs. 2 each. The Company
is in the process of completing the required filings with Registar of Companies, Karnataka (ROC) and
abtain the required statutory approvals, after which the subdivision wilt take effect. Accordingly, 1he

Basic and Diluted earnings per share given above have not been adjusted for the said event.

*Since 36.20 lakhs Potential Equily Shares are anti-dilutive in nature, they have not been considered in

determining Diluted earnings per share for year ended March 31, 2023,

Note "42": Exceptional items

. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income/(expense) I l{expense)
Relating to acquisition of Hitesh Plastics Private Limited:
Legal and Professional expenses (104.89) (324.99)
Fair value gain on deferred purchase consideration(Refer Note 38) 1,028.91 -
Relating to sale/proposed sale of immoveable properties (assets held for sale):
Fair value adjustment (124.81)
Profit on sale of land and buildings 1,256.85] -
Total 2,056.06 (324.99)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH

Note "43": Income Tax
(A) Income tax expense in the Statement of profit and loss consists of:

31, 2024

Particulars

Current income tax for the year
Current lax relating lo earlier years
Deferred tax for the year

Total

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
640.00 2,139.30
(952.34) (127.06)
2,318.52 1,174.88
2,006.18 3,187.12

(B) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by

India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Particulars

Accounting profit before income tax
At India's stalutory income tax rate of 25.17%

Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

Income not chargeable to tax (reversal of deferred purchase
consideration)

Carry forward of loss and unabsorbed deprecation

Impact of loss of erstwhile subsidiary

Differential tax rate in capital gains

Impact of operating leases

Current and deferred tax relating to earlier years (net)

Income tax expense

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
16,085.06 9,110.28
4,048.61 2,293.06
33.83 243.53
(258.96) -
(1,169.37) -
- 486.43
(21.51) -
- 286.89
(626.42) (122.79)
2,006.18 3,187.12

Note "44": Unrecorded Transactions

There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has be
transactions relaling to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or

year.

Note "45": Operating segment

The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of Preforms, Containers, Pumps, Dispensers,
which constitutes a single operating business segment. The Chief Executive Officer, decision maker of the Company,

overall basis hence no segment reporting disclosures.

Note "46™: Corporate Social Responsibility
Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies act 2013, the Company has incul

rred expenses on corporate social responsibility (CSR)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year as 232.36 217.79
per Section 135 of the Act
Amount spent during the year 233.00 220.55
Shortfall at end of the year - -
Tolal of previous years shortfall - -
Reasons for shortfall NA NA

Nature of CSR activities

All CSR projects of the Company work towards holistic development of the individual and
society. To optimize impact of its CSR activities, the Company focuses its support and CSR
spends on specific pre-determined causes relating to Environmental protection, Health care,
Education, Women empowerment and Rural development.

(Rs. in lakhs except stated otherwise)

Amount spent during the year ending March 31, 2024 In cash Yet to be Total

paid in cash
(i) Construction/acquisition of any assel - - -
On purposes other than (i) above 233.00 - 233.00
Amount spent during the year ending March 31, 2023 In cash Yet to be

paid in cash Total
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
On purposes other than (i) above 220.55 - 220.55

en surrendered / disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments. Further, there were no
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the

Caps and closures and recycling in the “Rigid Plastic Packaging" business segment,
evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources on
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. Registered Office at MBH Tech Park 2nd Floor Survey No 46P and 47 P Begur Hobli Electronic City Phase-Il Bangalore KA 560100
Website: www.manjushreeindia.com, Email: info@manjushreeindia.com CIN No.: U67120KA1987PLC032636

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

“Note "48":The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on February 20, 2024 approved the Non Binding Term Sheet with Oriental Containers Limited ("OCL")
towards acquisition of its business of ‘Manufacturing, trading and Sale of Plastic Closures and Preforms, on a slump sale basis and payment of upfront commitment fee of

Rs 1,500 Lakhs to be adjusted against the final consideration. As at March 31, 2024, the upfront commitment fee has been disclosed under capital advances in note no. 4 to
the financial statements.

Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors at its meeting heid on April 02, 2024 approved the execution of Business Transfer Agreement for the said acquisition

subject to requisite regulatory and statutory approvals, The Business Transfer agreement was signed on April 10, 2024. The consideration for the acquisition has been
determined at Rs. 52,000 lakhs (including deferred consideration of Rs. 2,500 lakhs).

Note "49":Previous Years Figures
Previous period’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to current year classification.

Note "50" : The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issuance on June 21, 2024

for and on behalf of the Board

TR S A

-r-'_'___-_- A
Thimmaiah NP Ashok Sudan Rajesh Kumar Ram Rasmi Ranjan Naik
Managing Director & CEO Chairman Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
DIN: 01184636 DIN: 02374967
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 21, 2024 Date: June 21, 2024 Date: June 21, 2024 Date: June 21, 2024
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